1	
2	Town of Chester
3	Board of Selectmen's Meeting
4	Thursday, August 27, 2020
5	Virtual Meeting
6	Approved Minutes
7	
, 8	I. Preliminaries
9	
10	Call the Meeting to Order
11	Roll Call
12	Pledge of Allegiance
13	Chairman's Additions or Deletions
14	Public Comment (10 minutes)
15	Approval of Minutes
16	Items for Signature
17	Road Updates, Snow Plow Contractors, Impact Fees: Road Agent Oleson
18	Spring Hill Farm – Trust Insurance, Lease Renewal
19	Election CARES Act Grant Application
20	Roundtable
21	Town Administrator's Report
22	Potential Non-Public Sessions
23	Adjournment
24	
25	1.1 Call to Order
26	
27	Chair Owens called the meeting of the Chester Board of Selectmen to order at 7:00 PM.
28	
29	Under the emergency provisions of RSA 91A, this meeting is being conducted electronically and
30	will be recorded, via dial-in, (929) 436-2866, internet at https://zoom.us/j/770832311 as well as
31	broadcast on Channel 20 and streamed on <a href="http://vod.chesterctv.com">http://vod.chesterctv.com</a>
32	
33	1.2 Roll Call
34	
35	Selectmen Present (Remotely):
36	
37	Chuck Myette
38	Stephen Landau
39	Jeremy Owens
40	Steve D'Angelo
41	
42	Selectmen Absent
43	Joseph Hagan
44	
45	Town Administrator Debra Doda (Remotely)
46	

47 48	Members of the Public Present (Remotely), at various times:					
49	Road Agent Mike Oleson					
50	EMD Phil Gladu					
51	Town Clerk/Tax Collector Elizabeth Lufkin					
52	Christy Ortins					
53	Nick Ortins					
54	Eric Emerson					
55	Penny Williams					
56	Chester CTV					
57						
58	and other persons un	known to the minute taker.				
59						
60	1.3 Pledge of Allegia	nce				
61						
62	Chair Owens led the	attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.				
63						
64 65	1.4 Chairman's Addi	ions or Deletions				
66	None.					
67						
68	1.5 Public Comment					
69						
70	Chair Owens opened	the meeting to public comment at 7:01 PM.				
71						
72	II. Old Business					
73						
74	2.1 Approval of Minut	es				
75						
76	An approval sheet for	the previous meeting's minutes was sent electronically.				
77						
78	2.2 Items for Signatur	e				
79	-					
80	All members reviewed	and signed the items in the signature folder submitted electronically.				
81						
82	III. New Business					
83						
84	3.1 Road Updates, S	now Plow Contracts, Impact Fees: Road Agent Oleson				
85						
86	Snow Plow Contracts					
87						
88	Road Agent Oleson ir	dicated he would like to increase the plowing contract service by 2%.				
89						
90 91	Town Administrator D	oda noted the following rates per hour (includes labor) would then be:				
92	6-wheel	\$98.01				
		<b>T</b>				

93	<ul> <li>6-wheel (no wing)</li> </ul>	\$92.03
94	<ul> <li>1 ton (with sander)</li> </ul>	\$79.02
95	<ul> <li>1 ton (plow only)</li> </ul>	\$74.07
96	Backhoe	\$86.06

97

Road Agent Oleson noted he provides the cutting edge and the guaranteed minimum will notchange.

100

Vice-Chair Myette motioned to approve the 2% increases proposed by the Road Agent for
 snow plowing program across the board. Selectman D'Angelo seconded the motion. A
 roll call vote was taken Landau – abstain, Owens – aye, Myette – aye and D'Angelo – aye.
 The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried.

- 105 106 *Road Work*
- 107

Road Agent Oleson reported they are very busy. They are finishing two sections of Fremont
 Road, culverts and head walls, 6" stone and binder; Harantis Lake is having three culverts

replaced and trees removed, reclaimed with 6" stone and 2.5" binder – 98% complete. The 4-5

- 111 trees will be removed by a crane next month.
- 112

Selectman D'Angelo asked about the top binder for Fremont Road and Road Agent Oleson noted it would wait a season. Selectman D'Angelo noted there is a bit of a dip in the road there and Road Agent Oleson reported that is on the State road and that he has been in touch with

- and Road Agent Oleson reported that is onthe DOT about it.
  - 117

Selectman Landau indicated he has driven down North Pond and the work is exceptional and he was surprised how much the road was raised. Harantis at 102 is a bit rocky. Road Agent

- 120 Oleson noted the wearing course will be put on in the spring.
- 121

Road Agent Oleson reported they are compacting and testing every 200' on North Pond Road.
The cross culverts are in. The 2.5" binder will go on the week of September 8<sup>th</sup>. Five driveways
will be done, then paving. Erosion stone will be added to the steep slopes and then the silt
fence will be removed. In spring the topcoat will be touched up and guardrails put in. The

- 126 project is on budget.
- 127

128 Road Agent Oleson addressed the comment made earlier about concerns that the resident's basements would become swimming pools. Road Agent Oleson noted nothing they are doing 129 out there will affect that. If basements were flooding before, they may still get wet. Engineering 130 131 was done by DuBois & King and reviewed by DES. The plans have been available for viewing at Town Hall since February 8<sup>th</sup>. Road Agent Oleson also corrected the misinformation about 132 North Pond not going out to bid with Busby. Road Agent Oleson came in February and asked 133 to roll over the contract with Busby to hold prices. He worked with the Town Administrator to 134 135 see if other Towns did this and all was agreed but Busby had bid it.

- 136
- 137 Impact Fees
- 138
- 139 Road Agent Oleson noted the Planning Board voted to release impact fees at their last meeting

140 for two quadrants.

141

142 Chair Owens read the Planning Board letter authorizing release of impact fees for the two 143 quadrants at the 8-26-20 meeting. Quadrant B is \$22,828 plus interest for culverts on Fremont 144 Road and Quadrant C is \$5,010 plus interest for culverts, grinding and repaving Harantis Lake 145 Road.

146

Selectman Landau motioned to authorize release of impact fees to the Road Agent in the
 amount of \$27,838 plus interest for grinding, paving and culverts to reimburse expenses
 for the Fremont Road and Harantis Lake Road projects. Vice-Chair Myette seconded the
 motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Owens – aye, Landau – aye and D'Angelo
 – aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried.

- 152
- 153 Equipment
- 154

Selectman Landau asked about the loader at the salt shed. Road Agent Oleson noted it is 155 rented at \$2,500/mo. out of the winter budget. Selectman Landau asked if he considered 156 157 purchasing one? Road Agent Oleson noted it is built into the CIP two years from now. He could do a lease purchase agreement. Vice-Chair Myette noted if we pay 9-10 years then it is 158 159 worn out and if we rent they take care of maintenance. Selectman D'Angelo recommended doing an analysis to compare. Road Agent Oleson noted he is signing the contract tomorrow 160 and doesn't want to wait too long. Selectman D'Angelo indicated Road Agent Oleson should do 161 162 that for now and get together for budget season to make sure there is enough set aside for two 163 vears.

- 165 Town Administrator Doda indicated there are two loaders listed on the CIP Table 10:
- 166 167

168 169

164

•	\$121,000	loader	2022-2023
٠	\$165,000	articulating	2023-2024

Selectman Landau asked about the truck the Maintenance Department had that was needed by
the Highway Department. Road Agent Oleson noted the vehicle sat. Maintenance Supervisor
Cavanaugh was driving another vehicle and there were no other drivers, but it can be used by
both the Highway Department and Maintenance.

- 174
- 175 3.2 Spring Hill Farm Trust Insurance, Lease Renewal
- 176
- 177 Lease Renewal
- 178

Vice-Chair Myette indicated the Ortins wish to renew their lease beginning on March 26, 2021 to
March 25, 2022, in order to plant garlic in the high tunnel to be harvested in late spring/early
summer. Their present lease ends in March 2021 and is working out well.

182

Selectman D'Angelo asked what was being charged? Mrs. Ortins noted \$500/yr. Selectman
 D'Angelo recommended a new 12-month lease, adding the additional space with an option to

- renew. Mrs. Ortins noted they were not looking to add additional space but will be getting
- approval to operate a food truck in the parcel they rent, a couple of days per week They have

187 been to the TRC, then will go to the Planning Board for Site Plan review and come back to the 188 BOS for written approval. A copy of their insurance has been provided. Selectman D'Angelo 189 advised it is always good to have a clean lease so if there is a disagreement you know which 190 document you are talking about. 191 Selectman Landau noted they could continue their first lease or give a second lease. Vice-192 Chair Myette recommended terminating the current lease on December 31, 2020 and sign a 193 new lease for the period of January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021. noting you can't obligate a 194 195 future Board. Selectman Landau proposed September 1 to September 1. TA Doda suggested to prorate the current contract lease rate by 3 months or the equivalent to a 25% return to the 196 197 Ortins. Mrs. Ortins noted it could be December to December. 198 199 Chair Owens would like to discuss this again at the September 10, 2020 meeting. 200 201 Trust Insurance 202 203 Vice-Chair Myette indicated he received the most recent quote from Farm Family Insurance

204 205 206

Selectman D'Angelo asked which fund the premium should be paid from? Town Administrator
Doda indicated it could come from either of the \$10,000 insurance payments account or from
the Spring Hill Farm Budget which is covers electric, gas and oil.

policy, but the Town is an added beneficiary. Cost is the same, \$564.

which added the Town as co-insured and indemnifies the Trust. The Trust is the holder of the

210

Selectman D'Angelo motioned to accept the policy from Farm Family Casualty Insurance
 to insure the property and liability at Spring Hill Farm. Selectman Landau seconded the
 motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Landau – aye, Owens – aye and D'Angelo
 – aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried.

215 216

3.3 Election CARES Act Grant Application

217

Town Administrator Doda indicated there are grant funds being allocated through the federal CARES Act to the State who will in turn calculate the portion allotted to the Town of Chester for the additional work necessitated by the expected increase in absentee ballots for this year's primary and general elections. An agreement needs to be signed and returned by the deadline of August 28<sup>th</sup>, 2020.

223

Selectman Landau motioned to authorize the Town Administrator to sign the application.
 Vice-Chair Myette seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken, Myette – aye, Landau
 – aye, Owens – aye and D'Angelo – aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen
 Hagan absent; motion carried.

- 228
- 229 IV. Selectmen's Business
- 230

232

<sup>231 4.1</sup> Roundtable

233 Selectman Landau indicated the two trees at the French lot were cut down and one pruned. 234 Several Elm Trees were purchased by the Elm Farm in Keene and additional trees could be 235 purchased for portions of Chester Street, Wason Pond by the road and Spring Hill Farm. There 236 are five extra, ordered some time ago, 15-16.' Need to go pick them up. They were trailered 237 the last time. People can purchase them as well but need to plant them properly. Selectman D'Angelo recommended putting it on the Town website to see if anyone would like to order any 238 trees for themselves at the Town rate. 239 240 241 Vice-Chair Myette asked how will the trees be planted? Selectman Landau indicated using 242 Town equipment. 243 244 Selectman D'Angelo asked about needing permission from the State to plant trees along the edge of the road? Road Agent Oleson indicated the right of way needs to be determined. 245 246 247 The gates at the French Cemetery could be expensive to replace and may be worth insuring as well as some equipment, lawn mowers and the golf cart and skid steer. There are several 248 249 containers and buildings at the Transfer Station that should be insured also. 250 251 March is Town Meeting this year and the budgets should be started. 252 253 Selectman Landau indicated he had two or three non-publics. 254 255 Selectman D'Angelo asked about activities such as fireworks since the Town Fair had been 256 cancelled and asked about Halloween and making sure everyone knows the Town is not 257 participating this year. Chair Owens indicated he would talk to Recreation Director Reishus. 258 Fireworks could be done with social distancing. 259 260 Chair Owens noted the following were coming up: 261 262 Wednesday, September 2, 2020 Planning Board – 7:00 PM 263 Monday, September 7, 2020 – Town Hall Closed – Labor Day Tuesday, September 8, 2020 – Primary Election – MPR – 7 AM to 7 PM 264 Tuesday, September 8, 2020 Conservation Commission – 7:00 PM 265 266 Wednesday, September 9, 2020 Planning Board - 7:00 PM Thursday, September 10, 2020 Board of Selectmen - 7:00 PM 267 268 269 Vice-Chair Myette noted the Wason Pond Conservation & Recreation Commission meeting originally scheduled for Monday, September 7, 2020 will be on Monday, September 14, 2020 at 270 7:00 PM. 271 272 4.2 Potential Non-Public Sessions 273 274 275 Selectman Landau motioned to go into non-public session pursuant to 91-A:3(II)(c) 276 reputation of someone other than a Board member. Vice-Chair Myette seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken, Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – aye and 277 278 Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 279

280 The meeting was closed to the public at 8:26 PM. 281 282 Selectman Landau motioned to come out of non-public session. Vice-Chairman Myette 283 seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – 284 aye, and Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion 285 carried. 286 287 The meeting room was reopened to the public at 9:10 PM. 288 Chairman Owens motioned to seal the minutes of the first non-public session on 289 290 reputation indefinitely. Selectman Landau seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 291 taken Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor 292 with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 293 294 Selectman Landau motioned to leave the minutes of the second non-public session on reputation unsealed. Chairman Owens seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken 295 296 Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with 297 Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 298 299 Chairman Owens motioned to leave the minutes of the third non-public session on reputation unsealed. Selectman Landau seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken 300 Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with 301 302 Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 303 Selectman Landau motioned to seal the minutes of the fourth non-public session on 304 reputation for a period of thirty (30) days. Chairman Owens seconded the motion. A roll 305 306 call vote was taken Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – Owens - aye. The vote was 307 four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 308 Selectman Landau motioned to seal the minutes of the fifth non-public session on 309 310 reputation for a period of thirty (30) days. Chairman Owens seconded the motion. A roll 311 call vote was taken Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 312 313 314 V. Adjournment 315 Selectman Landau moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice-Chair Myette seconded the 316 317 motion. A roll call vote was taken, Myette – aye, Landau – aye, D'Angelo – aye and 318 Owens - aye. The vote was four in favor with Selectmen Hagan absent; motion carried. 319 320 The meeting was adjourned at 9:12 PM. 321 322 Respectfully submitted, 323 Nancy Hoijer, Recording Secretary 324